ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 9, 2010
1:34 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Joe Paskvan, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Vice Chair
Senator Bettye Davis

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senat or Con Bunde

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 153

"An Act relating to manufactured hones, including manufactured
homes permanently affixed to land, to the conversion of
manufactured honmes to real property, to the severance of

manufactured honmes from real property, to the titling
conveyance, and encunbrance of manufactured hones, and to
manuf act urers' certificates of origin for vehi cl es; and

providing for an effective date."
- MOVED SB 153 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 302

"An Act establishing the Al aska m croloan revolving fund; nmaking
| oans for commercial purposes fromthe fund; and relating to the
fund and | oans; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED SB 302 QUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BILL NO 129
"An  Act relating to state and nunici pal bui l ding code
requirenents for fire sprinkler systenms in certain residential
bui | di ngs. "

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 9, 2010



BILL: SB 153
SHORT TI TLE: MOBI LE HOVES AS REAL PROPERTY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) FRENCH

03/ 18/ 09 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 18/ 09 (S) L&C, JUD

04/ 09/ 09 (S) L&C AT 1:00 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 09/ 09 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 09/ 10 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 302
SHORT TI TLE: M CROLOAN REVOLVI NG FUND
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 26/ 10 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 26/ 10 (S) L&C, FIN
03/ 09/ 10 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 129
SHORT TI TLE: RESI DENTI AL SPRI NKLER SYSTEMS
SPONSOR(s): MENARD

02/ 27/ 09 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 27/ 09 (S) CRA, STA, L&C

03/ 17/ 09 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 17/ 09 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 09 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 19/ 09 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 19/ 09 (S) Moved SB 129 Qut of Committee
03/ 19/ 09 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 20/ 09 (S) CRA RPT 1DP 2NR

03/ 20/ 09 (S) DP: MENARD

03/ 20/ 09 (S) NR. OLSON, THOVAS

03/ 24/ 09 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

03/ 24/ 09 (S) Moved SB 129 Qut of Committee
03/ 24/ 09 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 25/ 09 (S) STA RPT  1DP 2NR 2AM

03/ 25/ 09 (S) DP:  MENARD

03/ 25/ 09 (S) NR. MEYER, KOOKESH

03/ 25/ 09 (S) AM FRENCH, PASKVAN

03/ 02/ 10 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 02/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 02/ 10 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 09/ 10 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 9, 2010



SENATOR HOLLI S FRENCH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 153

GECRCE G NSBERG, outside counsel to Wells Fargo
Mcd i nchey & Stafford
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avail able to answer questions on SB 153.

CARL SPRI NCER, Regi strar

Di vision of Mdtor Vehicles (DW)

Depart ment of Adm nistration (DOA)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avail able for questions on SB 153.

TI FFANY KALDCOR

Wl |'s Fargo Honme Mort gage

Fai r banks, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 153.

MARC LEFSET, Mcdinchey & Stafford

Qut si de counsel for Wells Fargo Bank &

Vander built Mortgage C ayton Hones

Chair, Finance Lawyers Conmmittee, Mnufactured Housing Institute
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 153.

JEFF HARRI S
Wel |'s Fargo Bank
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 153.

PAT GREEN
Wel |'s Fargo Bank
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 153.

GREG W NEGAR, Director

Di vi sion of Investnents

Departnment of Commerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnment ( DCCED)
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 302.

PAUL M CHELSOHN, Jr.
Al aska State Honebuil der's Associ ati on
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 129.

CHARLES EDWARDSON, Project Manager

Ket chi kan 1 ndi an Communi ty Housing Authority
Ket chi kan, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 129.

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 9, 2010



DAVI D OVENS, Buil di ng I nspect or

Owens | nspection Services

Pal mer, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 129.

ART CLARK
Al aska Associ ation of Realtors
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 129.

DAVI D M LLER, Fire Chi ef
Sitka, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 129.

KELLY NI COLELLO, Deputy Director

Al aska State Fire Marshall's Ofice
Division of Fire and Life Safety
Department of Public Safety (DPS)
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: No position on SB 129.

DAVE HOE, Fire Chief

Nort h Tongass Vol unteer Fire Depart nent
Ket chi kan, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 129.

CROSBY GRI NDEL, WManager

Nor t hwest Regi on

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 129.

M CHAEL TILLY, Fire Chief

City of Kenai

Kenai, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 129.

LARRY FLOYD, Building Oficial

Cty of Kenai

Kenai, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 129.

JEFF TUCKER, President

Al aska Fire Chiefs Associ ation
Fai r banks, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 129.

DENNI S BRAUDI GAN, Director

Emer gency Servi ces
Mat Su Bor ough

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -4-

March 9, 2010



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 129

JEREMY DI LLARD, representing hinself
Mat Su Val | ey
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 129.

DAVE DI LLARD
Al aska State Building Association
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 129.

JEFF TWAI'T, Director

Al aska St ate Honebuil di ng Associ ati on
Cty of Kenai

Kenai, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 129.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1:34: 28 PM
CHAI R JCE PASKVAN called the Senate Labor and Conmerce Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:34 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Thomas, Bunde, Meyer, and Paskvan.

SB 153- MOBI LE HOVES AS REAL PROPERTY

1:36:30 PM

CHAI R PASKVAN announced SB 153 to be up for consideration. He
said Senator Meyer had identified a concern and had already
spoken to the bill's sponsor about it.

SENATOR HOLLI'S FRENCH, sponsor of SB 153, read the sponsor
statenent as foll ows:

SB 129 establishes procedures to convert manufactured
homes to real property through a defined process
within the Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW). This

change will give the owners of nmanufactured hones
better access to traditional nortgage financing which
often features lower interest rates, and it will help

home owners increase the value of their house by
allowing them to convert their manufactured honme into
real property. The Ilegislation wll also prevent
clouded titles that often hinder clean transactions
i nvol vi ng manuf actured hones.

Currently, when a manufactured home is affixed to a
per manent foundation on |and owned by an individual,

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 9, 2010



t he vaguel y defi ned title surrender procedur e
currently used by the Division of Mtor Vehicles |acks
a record notice. Wthout a record notice, a homeowner
is often left with an unnmarketable title and an
unperfected security interest in their house placing
all parties in a real estate transaction - the buyer
the lender, and the seller - at risk.

Many Alaskans Ilive in nmnufactured hones. Thi s
legislation wll treat residents that permanently
affix a manufactured honme to land they own the sane
way that traditional honmeowners are treated in the
state. | urge you to support this fair |egislation.

SENATOR FRENCH pointed out that Alaska is one of the very few
states without a process simlar to the one presented in his
bill. Wile it is a sinple concept, SB 153 spans several
di fferent aspects of state |aw and requires significant changes.

SENATOR BUNDE said he could think of two kinds of manufactured
homes - one was never on wheels and is placed on a foundation
and those that are "trailer houses."” He asked Senator French if
his definition of "manufactured" covers both types.

SENATOR FRENCH said this is meant for "nobil e homes" on wheel s.

SENATOR BUNDE asked if SB 153 allows traditional nortgages, but
does nothing to conpel a lending agency to provide a nortgage
where it did not feel it was a best business practi ce.

1:39:46 PM
SENATOR DAVI S joi ned the conmitt ee.

SENATOR FRENCH answered, "Exactly, there is absolutely no state
sort of armtwisting.” SB 153 sinply allows nobile honmeowners to
stand on the same footing as any other nortgagee who goes to the
bank and asks for financing.

SENATOR MEYER said he was still confused by the difference
bet ween a nobile home and a manufactured hone. He al ways thought
a nobile home as being sonething on wheels and a manufactured
home as being attached to a foundation. He asked if this bill
was saying they are one and the sane.

SENATOR FRENCH responded that the definition for both is found
in AS 45.29. 102.

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 9, 2010



1:41: 36 PM
SENATOR MEYER asked what kind of certification you get fromthe
DW if you have a nobile honme or trailer.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that the point of the bill is to nake
t hem t he sane.

SENATOR MEYER asked if this process change costs the honeowner
any nore noney to get a secure title.

SENATOR FRENCH deferred that answer to Wells Fargo.

CHAI R PASKVAN interjected that "mnufactured honme" was defined
in AS 45.29.102, subsection 65 as:

A structure transportable in one or nore sections that
is eight body feet or nore in wdth, forty body feet
or nmore in length, and that is built on a pernanent
chassis and designed to be used as a dwelling with or
wi t hout a pernmanent foundati on.

1:43: 31 PM

SENATOR FRENCH said he lived in a nobile home when he was 20,
and it had wheels that had been placed underneath the skirting.
He lived in it for 10 years and then sold it to soneone who took
it to Grdwod. It was still able to nove after all those years,
and he thought the chassis was the key aspect.

SENATOR MEYER said his potential anendnent has to do with the
concern that nobile hone transactions will still not be covered
by the Real Estate Surety Fund.

SENATOR FRENCH said it would nake sense to himto |let consuners
have access to that Surety Fund.

1:45:50 PM

GECRCE G NSBERG, Mcd inchey & Stafford, outside counsel to Wlls
Fargo, said he didn't have prepared testinony, but wanted to
answer one question - that "nobile hone" and "manufactured hone"
refers to the sane thing. He explained that it is the common
term nol ogy used particularly in Departnment of Housing and U ban
Devel opment regulations. They are not talking about nodular
homes that are stick built, prefabricated and assenbled on site.
"These are nobile hones that are nmade at a factory and then
either installed just on blocks or pernmanently affixed to real
estate.”

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 9, 2010



SENATOR BUNDE asked if financing for the nobile home depended on
whether it remamined on the chassis or was permanently affixed to
a foundati on.

MR. G NSBERG answered yes. He explained that the whol e point of
the bill is that Alaska currently has no procedure for
converting a nobile home with a certificate of title to real
property. A car it is covered by a certificate of title, but a
home is financed by having the lender's nane listed as a secured
lien holder on the title. Unlike a car, a hone can be
permanently affixed to the real property on which it sits. Once
that happens, it is comonly taxed as real property and the
intent is to treat it as real property, which neans transferring
ownership by deed and financing it by a nortgage. The problemis
that Al aska currently has no reliable procedure for converting a
honme covered by a certificate of title to real estate, so that
it can, in fact, be transferred by deed and be encunbered by a
nor t gage.

The bill i1s designed to create a new section of real estate |aw
which sets forth procedures for converting a hone to real
property and in order for that to happen the hone has to be
permanently affixed to land, a certain affidavit has to be
recorded in the |land records, certain docunents have to be filed
with the DW, and dependi ng upon whether the home is covered by
a certificate of title, a manufacturer's certificate of origin

or neither, procedures are set forth to surrender the title or
surrender the certificate of origin and have the division
confirmin its records that conversion had occurred.

MR. G NSBERG said the advantage is that then there will be a
record, not only in the DW, but in the real estate records
where deeds and nortgages are recorded that people can rely
upon. After that, the hone along with the rest of the real
estate can be transferred by deed and encunbered by nortgage.
Right now, very few people are willing to extend credit for
purchasing a nobile hone based on a nortgage because there is
not hing that establishes the honme as part of the real estate

Likewise, it can't be financed as personal property because the
division will not issue a title to a nobile home that has been
permanent|ly affixed to property. The result is that not only the
| ender, but the owner of the home, is "in no man's land." He has
a hone that he can't sell because there is no way to docunent
ownership and he can't encunber because there is no way to
secure a lien against it. It's really wunmarketable for
ever ybody.

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 9, 2010



SENATOR BUNDE asked if a nobile honme in a trailer court where a
space is being rented and not owned wuld qualify for a
nort gage.

MR. G NSBERG replied if the owner had a |ong-term | ease (defined
in statute as 20 years or nore), the conversion process would
apply to themas well.

SENATOR BUNDE said nost nobile hone parks have nonth-to-nonth
agreenents and not long-term |leases. He said he had heard all
too often about a park closing and people having no place to
take their nobile hones.

SENATOR BUNDE asked if this would apply to manufactured honmes on
| eased | and, but not to the nore nornal mont h-t o- nont h
arrangenent .

MR. G NSBERG replied that was correct, and chances were that the
nmobil e honme park owner wouldn't permt it anyway, because he
owns the real estate and doesn't want anybody else to own a
smal | piece of it.

SENATOR THOMAS asked if these types of homes are still
manuf act ured, because he had not seen any new ones | ately.

MR. G NSBERG replied yes; in the 1970s, manufactured housing
accounted for 20-25 percent of new housing starts, but demand is
way down now.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if SB 153 covers everything that is 8 ft. X
40 ft. or larger.

MR. G NSBERG answer ed yes.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked how nmany units converted by this law in
Al aska woul d |ikely take advantage of the nortgage | oans.

MR. G NSBREG said he didn't know.

1:54:29 PM
CARL SPRINGER, Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW), Departnent of
Adm ni stration (DOA), said he was avail able for questions.

1:54: 46 PM

TI FFANY KALDOR, Wlls Fargo Honme Mortgage, Fairbanks, said she
supported SB 153. She said it would provide a formal nethod in
Alaska for elimnating the certificate of title to a

SENATE L& C COW TTEE -9- March 9, 2010



manuf actured home in converting the honme to real property when
the hone is or will be permanently affixed to real property and
obtaining a new certificate of title when a hone previously
affixed to real property is later physically severed fromit.

MS. KALDOR said that Al aska, unlike the vast majority of states,
has no formal statutory procedure for converting a nmanufactured
home to real property. Under current Al aska law, including the
Al aska Uniform Comrercial Code (UCC), a security interest in a
manuf act ured hone permanently affixed to land can be perfected
only by noting it on the hone certificate of title and recording
a deed of trust with a fixtures clause and an appropriate
description of the home. The need for legislation arises from
the fact that the Alaska DW would not issue a title for a
manuf actured hone that is affixed to a permanent foundation. It
has created an adm nistratively vaguely defined procedure wth
no notice of record. The result for many Al askan manufact ured
homeowners is an unmarketable title to their home and for many
| enders an unperfected security interest in their collateral.

She said they feel the bill will help manufactured honmeowners in
the state increase the value of their manufactured hones by
allowing them to convert them to real property including
manuf act ured homes not covered by certificates of title or for
which the certificate of title cannot be found but pernmanent
affixed to real property before the effective date of the
legislation. It wuld also help lenders to gain perfected
security interest in mnufactured honmes and help the DW by
putting a fornmalized procedure in place for canceling a title
when a manufactured honme is put on a permanent foundation. And
finally, it would increase property tax revenues in the
muni ci palities that |evy property taxes.

SENATOR BUNDE asked if she knew of any negative aspects to
passing this bill.

MS. KALDOR answer ed no.

SENATOR MEYER said one negative m ght be how the owner would be
abl e pay increased property taxes. He asked on the other hand

if it would assist people in getting a better interest rate for
their nobile home, since they would have to pay higher interest
rate for raw | and

M5. KALDOR said that was not correct.

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 10- March 9, 2010



SENATOR MEYER asked what kind of loan he would get to buy a
nmobil e home on a city lot - the lower interest |oan that soneone
who was buying a single famly house would get or the higher
interest loan that someone would pay if they were just buying
raw | and.

M5. KALDOR answered that currently a manufactured honme can be
financed by Freddie Mac, Fannie My, FHA or VA, and possibly by
AHFC depending on the type of foundation and if it sits on its
own |lot. They insure through a certification process that a hone
is permanently affixed to a foundation and that the wheels and
t ongue have been renoved. The buyer gets a better rate and | oan
program than for purchasing raw | and.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked how many units mght be converted in her
area or statew de under this programshould it becone | aw

MS. KALDOR answered that she didn't know.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked the spread in rates and terns of financing
bet ween nobil e honmes and conventional hones.

M5. KALDOR deferred that answer to a technical expert who was
onl i ne.

2: 00: 40 PM

MARC LEFSET, Mdinchey & Stafford, outside counsel for Wlls
Fargo Bank, said he agreed with M. dGnsberg's coments. The
only point he would add is that by creating a procedure in
Al aska that allows |enders and borrowers to work together to
formally convert a manufactured honme from personal property to
real property would nmake | oans secured by that property eligible
for sale to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac as well as nmaking them
eligible for insurance under FHA and VA prograns. He said it
would open up the market for better interest rates that are
avai l abl e for onsite-built hones.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked if he saw any downside if this law were
enact ed.

MR. LEFSET said he didn't see any downsi de.
SENATOR MEYER asked if he was currently buying a nobile home on
a 7000 sq. ft. lot, would the loan be primarily for the lot or

would it be the sanme loan as he would get for a residential
house on the same-sized | ot.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 9, 2010



MR. LEFSET answered if this bill is enacted and the honmeowner
follows the procedures under the law to nmake the hone legally
real estate, he would qualify for the sane rates as a site-built
home. Now when the hone is not considered real estate (not
affixed to a permanent foundation) it is subject to rates that
are typically 3 or 4 points higher |ike the ones that are
avai l abl e to soneone financing a home in a nobile honme park.

SENATOR MEYER said he thought this change woul d assist people in
his district in buying nobile hones.

MR. LEFSET offered that manufactured hones are often the only
viable form of new housing that is workable in rural areas,
because it is fully assenbled in the factory and transported to
the honme site and installed on the foundation. The materials and
| abor are m nimal .

CHAI R PASKVAN asked M. Lefset if he did legal work for other
financial institutions.

MR. LEFSET answered yes, many financial institutions including
nost of the major manufactured honme |enders and several park
operators.

CHAI R PASKVAN said he wanted to nmake sure they weren't m ssing
sonmet hing that other institutions would find.

MR. LEFSET responded that he is the chair of the Finance Lawers
Commttee of the Manufactured Housing Institute, the national
trade association for manufactured housing, and he has been
aut horized by themto support SB 153. He said he is also counsel
to Vanderbuilt Mrtgage Cayton Hones, the country's |argest
manufacturer of manufactured honmes, who also favors this
| egi sl ati on.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked if he saw any downsi de.
MR. LEFSET replied, "Only an upside."

2:06:42 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN announced an at ease at 2:06 p.m to 2:07 p. m

JEFF HARRIS, Wlls Fargo Bank, said he agreed with all the
previous testinony on SB 153.

2:07:43 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 9, 2010



PAT GREEN, Wlls Fargo Bank, added to that SB 153 also has the
endorsenent of the Alaska Bankers Association whose other
menbers include Al aska Pacific Bank, Denali State Bank, First
Bank Ketchikan, First National Bank Al aska, Key Bank, M.
McKi nl ey Bank, North Rim Bank as well as Wells Fargo.

MR. GREEN said frominternal conversations he has had with Wlls
Fargo people and Rod Jackson, their area mnanager for hone
nortgages, they anticipate this change affecting 2-3 custoners
per nonth for Wells Fargo. So that would translate out to 24-36
per year.

SENATOR MEYER said he didn't see a fiscal note, but was ready to
nove it on.

Finding no further coments, Chair Paskvan closed public
testi nony.

SENATOR FRENCH said he didn't think a fiscal note was an
absol ute requirenent, but he pledged to get one and to work with
Senator Meyer to incorporate his ideas into the bill. Al the
menbers were present and agreed with this understanding.

SENATOR MEYER noved to report SB 153 from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and forthcomng fiscal note. There
were no objections and it was so ordered.

2:13: 03 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN announced an at ease from2:13 p.m to 2:15 p. m

SB 302- M CROLOAN REVOLVI NG FUND

2:16: 04 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN announced SB 302 to be up for consideration.

2:16:11 PM

GREG W NEGAR, Director, Division of Investnents, Departnent of
Commerce, Community & Econom c Developnent (DCCED), said he
supported SB 302. He said it wuld really benefit snal
businesses in the state, which in turn would help the Al askan
econony. As background, he said, his agency had adm nistered a
nunmber of different state |oan prograns for many years and has
the infrastructure in place to successfully run this one.

MR. W NEGAR explained that this bill would create a new program
aimed at helping small businesses access critically needed
capital. This will help themnot only start businesses, but grow

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 13- March 9, 2010



existing ones. It is nodeled after a very simlar program that
is available through the Small Business Adm nistration (SBA) in
46 other states, but not Al aska. The reason is that that SBA
requires having an internmediary | ender, and no one in Al aska has
stepped forward to run that program This is an effort to
provide simlar types of loans for Alaska businesses that are
avai |l abl e through SBA in other states.

He said that essentially the program could |loan up to $35,000 to
an individual and up to $70,000 to two or nore individuals;
applicants need to be Alaskan residents. The |oan proceeds can
be used for a variety of things - working capital, equipnent,
construction or other comrercial purposes. The maxinum term is
six years and they need to be fully collateralized. The interest
rate would be based on prinme plus one with a floor of 6 percent
and a cap of 8. Wth existing interest rates that would work out
to a 6-percent fixed interest rate.

In terms of capitalization, M. Wnegar said, his division had
submtted a fiscal note for $3.5 million that would cone from
AIDEA. This funding mechanism is actually contingent on the
passage of either SB 301 or its conpanion, HB 411.

He said the fiscal note also had sone operating expenses for one
| oan officer to process the requests, sone start up expenses and
a small armount of travel. He said they tried very hard to keep
the fiscal note as | ow as possible, because they wanted the | oan
fund to "cash-flow' and be successful. They anticipate about 75
loans in the first year and about 100 in the second; then 25
| oans thereafter.

2:20: 36 PM

SENATOR BUNDE asked how this |oan program would be any different
than the current AIDEA program that hel ps businesses that can't
get | oans through conventional neans.

MR WNEGAR replied that this is a smaller, nuch shorter-term
program The maximum term is six years and it doesn't require
going through a bank, which an AIDEA loan requires. |It's
targeted to smaller businesses that need a little bit of working
capi tal

SENATOR BUNDE asked if ranpant inflation occurs and the interest
rate goes above 8 percent the state would be in a situation of
ei ther subsidizing these |oans or not being able to make them
so why the cap?

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 9, 2010



MR. WNEGAR replied that the thinking was to provide an interest
rate that wouldn't get out of hand. The cap could be taken off
and the rate could be just prinme-plus 1. The division felt that
it could successfully admnister the program for nuch |ess than
t hat .

SENATOR BUNDE said while he was confident they wouldn't go above
8 percent, but if it did, that would either prevent |oans from
being granted or the dollars that would subsidize them would
conme from sone other essential state service. He was concerned
about the state having limted dollars in the relatively near
future.

MR. WNEGAR responded that he should have clarified that the
original $3.5 mllion is actually set up as a revolving |oan
fund, so it won't need additional funding. The program would
continue based on the interest it collects from the initial
capitalization.

SENATOR BUNDE asked if for some reason the interest rate went
above 8, would running the program cost them nore than they
woul d be taking in.

MR. WNEGAR replied that the funding is already there. The |oan
officer position over time mght go up slightly, but he was
confortable that the program could be administered at the 6
percent |evel including risk.

SENATOR BUNDE said the $3.5 mllion to capitalize this |oan
program cones as an AlIDEA dividend and is noney that could have
been used sonmewhere el se, and asked where that noney would have
potentially been used.

2:24. 34 PM

MR. WNEGAR replied that basically it reduces AIDEA s dividend

and he is correct that it could be used by AIDEA for sonething
else. But this program ties into AIDEA s purpose, which is to
pronot e econom ¢ devel opnment and hel p smal|l busi nesses, as well.

CHAI R PASKVAN said the interest rate is tied to the concept of
being fully collateralized. Wiat does that nean?

MR. WNEGAR replied that they wanted to make sure if sonmeone
ends up in a default situation, that the division has a way to
recover those funds for the state. So they left a lot of
flexibility in terms of collateral to secure each individual
project as best they can. It could be a variety of different

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 9, 2010



things and loan ternms plays into that. It could be secured with
inventory, but that is fairly high risk. OQhers mght have a
buil ding or a second deed of trust on a hone.

2:26:15 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN cl osed public testinony.

SENATOR BUNDE said the mcro-loan idea has done well in third-
world countries, but his hesitancy conmes from what he has heard
that inventories have been left sitting and public funds hadn't
been adequately protected.

CHAI R PASKVAN said he believed it was a good bill and should
nove forward.

SENATOR THOVAS asked what the definition of a small business is.

MR. W NEGAR answered that the bill has a residency requirenent;
other than that it is pretty general.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if it nentioned businesses over a certain
gross anount of sal es.

MR. W NEGAR answer ed no.

2:29:51 PM
SENATOR BUNDE asked for an estimate of the demand for these
| oans.

MR. WNEGAR answered that the division estimted about 75
applications in the first year and about 100 in the second year.
This capitalization would allow themto continue at the rate of
about 25 | oans per year.

2:30: 58 PM
SENATOR BUNDE asked for an exanple of sone typical businesses
that m ght be interested.

MR. WNEGAR replied all types of little retail outlets, nom and
pop businesses that need working capital or help putting in
| easehol d i nprovenents, and things |ike that.

SENATOR BUNDE renenbered subsidizing the "nade in Al aska
program "

CHAI R PASKVAN said he thought it would be inportant to hear how
the programis doing in one and two years.

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 16- March 9, 2010



MR. W NEGAR answered that was an excellent point. He said the
division has sone experience wth other small business prograns
like the small business economc developnment program that
i nvol ves EDA noney, and a rural developnment initiative fund; he
coul d provide delinquency rates on those prograns, but they have
been very successful.

CHAI R PASKVAN noted letters of support in nenbers' packets and
read one fromthe Fairbanks Econom c¢ Devel opnent Corporati on.

2: 33: 55 PM

SENATOR MEYER noved to report SB 302 from committee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
were no objections and it was so ordered.

2:34.18 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN announced an at ease from2:34 p.m to 2:38 p. m

SB 129- RESI DENTI AL SPRI NKLER SYSTEMS

2:38:16 PM

CHAI R PASKVAN announced SB 129 to be up for consideration. [CSSB
129 (L&C), labeled 26-LS0679\M was before the committee.] He
said he was contacted earlier today and was offered a building
code adoption procedure for all of the relevant jurisdictions
around Al aska, and he would distribute it to the commttee so
t hey coul d see what procedures are in place currently.

2:39:34 PM

PAUL M CHELSOHN, Jr., Alaska State Honebuilder's Association,
said he has been a builder in Anchorage for 34 years. He bel ongs
to National Association of Honebuilders, is a nenber of the
Construction, Codes and Standards (CCNS) Commttee, and has
served on the Minicipality of Anchorage's Building Code
Commttee for 17 years where his primary purpose is to decide
which code to go with if there is an argunent. He added that he
sat on the International Code Conference (1CC), its Fire and
Life Safety Code for two years and the International Residential
Code (IRC) for four years. He had been involved with code review
in Anchorage for seven code cycl es.

He said he had heard how the code process today is fair and
equitable to all concerned, but he disagreed with that, because
"being involved for seven code cycles, the public has never been
notified." He said that notices are posted, but the average hone
owner doesn't care about code until it directly affects them He

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 9, 2010



said he has been involved with the sprinkler issue on a national
| evel for 10 years.

2:42: 40 PM

MR. M CHELSOHN explained that at the 1CC |level, the way a code
i s devel oped and adopted is that one is appointed to a conmttee
and the codes then are submtted and proposed and the conmittee
votes on them After that they are passed on to the nother
commttee that is nmade up of fire and building officials
t hroughout Anmerica. Again, he said, there is no public
i nvol venent, and these individual decide which codes will be in
the code book and which ones won't. If it was a true public
awar eness and a true public process, he didn't think they would
be here today.

In the fall 1CC board neeting, he stated, the Fire Coalition
shipped in an additional 1800 people for one vote, the vote on
this issue. Ten mnutes before the vote was taken 385 people
were in audience; when this vote canme up there were 1890. Wen
this vote was over seven mnutes |ater 402 renmai ned.

MR. M CHELSOHN said he has heard a | ot about cost, but the issue
of cost is not relevant. Costs wll be what they are; once
sprinklers are nmandated they will have the potential to rise
i nedi at el y.

MR. M CHELSOHN said he was asking for transparency in terns of
preparing a cost analysis and other |listed itens for any
jurisdiction that chose to nandate installation of fire
sprinklers in one and two famly dwellings. He estimted that
installing sprinklers in 800,000 units in the United States for
a year would cost $1.7 nmillion - and "to save one life."

2:45: 29 PM

MR. M CHELSOHN said the Honebuilders are asking to have three
public hearings, and the reason is that the public is not
notified and they are not aware of the process. This wll give
the honebuilders, industry and real estate agents tinme to
educate and bring people forward for a chance to deci de whet her
they want sprinklers or not. He asked if the process was so
transparent why so nany organi zations are against it.

2:46:41 PM

SENATOR BUNDE said Arizona was quoted on how using sprinklers
reduced property damage and saved lives, and it occurred to him
that a potential downside is if the power goes out in your house
and your pipes freeze and you have a sprinkler system

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 18- March 9, 2010



MR. M CHELSOHN answered that installing fire sprinklers has a
ot of downside. The size of the water line would have to be
increased from the state's requirenent of .75 inches to 1.5
i nches, and right now Anchorage has a 1-inch m ni num

Sonetimes punps will be needed, he said, and the Fire Coalition
states that nost fires are electrical. If you have an electrical
fire and the power shuts off, you don't have power to punp the
system The first thing the fire departnment does when they
approach a house or fire is shut the power off so no one gets
el ectrocuted. He said the Al aska Honebuilders have supported
usi ng snoke detectors and educating people on how to use them
Sprinkler systenms save buildings and fire sprinklers aren't
necessarily |ifesaving issues.

2:48: 58 PM

Anot her downside is the needed increase in the service lines in
jurisdictions that already don't have adequate service to supply
the houses with the water they m ght need.

SENATOR BUNDE asked about people wth onsite water systens
i nstead of continuous services |like in town.

MR MCHELSOHN replied that he had installed six sprinkler
systens in houses in the last 10 years and the cost has ranged
from $25, 000 to $38,000. On one project he was asked to bring in
and eight-inch water main; that alone cost $12,000. Another
project with an off-site well needed two 350-gallon storage
tanks for water to operate the fire system

He al so pointed out that these systens need to be inspected, but
of all the ones he had installed, he asked, and none of them
have had their systens inspected. They range from 7 years to 2.5
years ol d.

2:51: 03 PM

CHARLES EDWARDSON, Project WManager, Ketchikan Indian Comrunity
Housing Authority, Ketchikan, said he teaches construction
technology at UAA and is a treasurer for the Alaska State
Honebui | ders Association. He said he supported SB 129. He said
the rural challenges are too nunmerous to list in both cost and
| ogistics. He agreed with M. Mchelson that nobst people don't
know what their |ocal comunity is adopting.

He said they have learned there are two sides to an issue. Wen
the Fire Marshall tried to get this adopted by the Cty Council

SENATE L& C COW TTEE -19- March 9, 2010



the 1issue went away altogether because the Honebuil ders
Associ ation brought in sonme facts and figures of their own.

CHAIR PASKVAN remarked that it sounds like the process in
Ket chi kan wor ked.

MR. EDWARDSON said it wouldn't have worked if the Honebuil ders
hadn't intervened. They maintain that the science hasn't been
proven yet and that snoke detectors save nore |ives.

CHAI R PASKVAN encouraged him to focus on the CS that talked
about the process.

MR. EDWARDSON encouraged preparing the cost benefit analysis for
new residential fire sprinkler systems so that the process has
transparency. Another point he raised is that the housing
authority he works for provides low income housing for nmany
people. They just <conpleted a 24-unit housing project in
Ketchikan and that wouldn't have been possible wth the
addi tional cost of sprinkler installation.

2:56: 22 PM

DAVID OWENS, Building Inspector, Ownens Inspection Services,
Pal mer, requested that his enmail becone part of the record. He
said he didn't think it was unreasonable to ask for nunerous
public neetings on big ticket itens I|ike sprinkler systens.
Providing a cost analysis on sonething that will cost a |ot of
money is also not wunreasonable. As a building inspector, he
said, he gets the brunt of things when they get "railroaded
t hrough."” For example, the last electrical code - it had one
public hearing over the holiday period and the next thing they
know, its law. Now they have to put arch-weld circuit breakers
in all of their houses; they had sonething to say about it, but
didn't get the opportunity.

2:58: 33 PM

ART CLARK, Al aska Association of Realtors, said using the safety
issue as a way to get sonething passed quickly is very seductive
especially when people don't get a chance to understand all the
inmplications. He supported SB 129, because it would allow tine
for a better understandi ng of things.

SENATOR BUNDE asked if he could speculate on the value of hones
with sprinkler systenms versus and those without. Wuld it have
an inpact on resale value of the non sprinkler honmes or would
the cost of the new honmes be so high it wouldn't make any
di fference?

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 20- March 9, 2010



MR. CLARK said it mght be a little bit of both. Perhaps the
resal e value of hones w thout sprinklers would be inpacted, but
on the other hand he couldn't see new buyers paying that nuch
nore for it. So the people who paid for the initial sprinkler
system possibly wouldn't be able to get those dollars out of it
down t he road.

3:00: 51 PM

DAVID MLLER, Fire Chief, Sitka, opposed SB 129 and said let the
communities decide for thenselves. He said that nost |[ocal
comunities have the process established al ready.

3:02:17 PM
KELLY N COLELLO, Deputy Director, Alaska State Fire Mrshall's
Ofice, Dvision of Fire and Life Safety, Departnent of Public
Safety (DPS), said he did not have a position on SB 129, because
as witten it has no effect on the state. He offered to answer
guesti ons.

3:02: 53 PM

DAVE HOE, Fire Chief, North Tongass Volunteer Fire Departnent,
Ket chi kan, opposed SB 129. He said the idea that the sprinkler
system saves lives is irrefutable. For instance, nunerous
studi es have shown that kids don't wake up to the normal snoke
detectors; they have also shown that by the tinme the snoke
detector goes off late at night, the disorientation of comng
out of a deep sleep to the sound of an alarm going off is
disorienting at best. A lot of tines the heat and snoke by then
can nmake escape a significant chall enge.

MR. HCE explained that years ago fire fighters could wear an air
pack and could get inside houses with six or eight mnutes
before "fl ashover” occurred, but now, because  of new
construction techniques and the use of synthetic fibers, houses
are much tighter and the flashover tine has dropped to | ess than
three mnutes - not a lot of time. Fire sprinklers will give
people nore time to get out. He didn't think the state should
becone involved in the debate about whether to make it nore
difficult of the local municipalities to decide whether they
shoul d be able to enact an ordi nance or not.

He stated that all SB 129 does is add cost and bureaucratic
challenges to comunities that may not have the ability to do
deal with themto the point that they won't even try.

3:05:52 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -21- March 9, 2010



CROSBY  GRI NDEL, Nort hwest  Regi onal Manager , Nat i onal Fire
Protection Association (NFPA), said the Association opposed SB
129. He said the Association had worked to advance life and
safety issues for nore than 100 year through research, education
and devel opnent of consensus codes and standards. The nost
recent advances in residential sprinkler technology bring in a
new era of honme fire safety.

He explained that several factors have conspired to cause the
greatest risk of fire death and injury to be in the hone. In
fact, 83 percent of fire deaths and 89 percent of fire injuries
occur in the hone as per their 2008 fire loss report. He said
the NFPA believes that residential sprinklers are the solution.
They support the desire of the fire service to have the option
to utilize this national standard life safety device in their
efforts to protect their communities from the devastating
effects of fire. He also pointed out that residential fire
sprinklers are significantly different than those found in
commercial buildings, and they are now in all national codes.

3:08: 31 PM

M CHAEL TILLY, Fire Chief, Cty of Kenai, said he opposed SB
129. He said he would be negligent not to consider adding or
utilizing a technology that would nake his community safer, but
this bill is not about a technology that is already recognized,
accepted and proven in nany comunities across the United
States. SB 129 attenpts to alter the way a conmunity does
business and targets a single idea or technology that his city
may want to use by addi ng unnecessary cost and stunbling bl ocks.
He said that communities are deferred for particular reasons -
one being that they know their community and the best processes
to educate their popul ace of potential changes in | aw

MR, TILLY said that Kenai has adopted many fire codes and the

standing process the Gty Council uses has been in place and
seens to have worked well over the years. He failed to see why
this topic needed additional Ilegislation from the State of

Al aska. The 2006 |IBC Codes have hundreds of fire and building
codes that a deferred nunicipality either adopts or excludes
from their nunicipal codes. Not once have they been burdened
with doing a cost benefit analysis for any other codes.

He said these codes are adopted for their community with | ocal
input from city building officials, fire officials, «city
managenent, city council, and the State Fire Marshall's Ofice
through an already established procedure that includes public
i nput and adheres to AS 29.25. Feasibility, enforceability and

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -22- March 9, 2010



applicability to the comunity are all considered prior to
adopti on.

3:11: 08 PM

LARRY FLOYD, Building Oficial, Cty of Kenai, said he opposed
SB 129. He didn't see the issue as being sprinklers, but rather
that they, as building officials, know the needs of their
community and they should have the authority to determ ne what
i's reasonabl e and necessary within it.

3:11: 53 PM
JEFF  TUCKER, Pr esi dent, Alaska Fire Chiefs Association,
Fai r banks, who opposed SB 129, said he would stand by for
gquesti ons.

3:12:16 PM

DENNI S BRAUDI GAN, Director, Enmergency Services, WMtSu Borough,
said he opposed SB 129. They strongly believe in the public
process, and their board strives to be transparent in enacting
every borough code. An enhanced public process already exists

for those codes carrying greater. In fact, their selection
process for the new Goose Creek Correctional Center resulted in
a national award because of its transparency and active

i nvol venent by the public. Mandating | ocal governnent to enhance
the public hearing process for a single issue is onerous and
unnecessary.

MR. BRAUDI GAN said currently if the Mitsu Borough were to
mandate residential fire sprinkler systenms the proposed code
would be required to go through the borough's planning process
by virtue of the Matsu Borough's second class nunicipality
status as dictated by the 2008 Suprene Court ruling in Giswld
v. City of Honmer. He said this proposed code would be thoroughly
reviewed by the borough's planning commssion as well as by all
borough community councils and all fire service area boards of
supervi sors, al | conmmi Ssi ons, councils and boards giving
adequate public notice and allowing for public hearings. Once
the comrents are heard the conm ssions, councils and boards
forward their respective recomendations to the Assenbly prior
to public hearings. This represents a very thorough and
transparent public hearing process.

He said the Matsu Borough believes that SB 129 is not necessary

and is trying to address a process that already takes place on
an ongoi ng basis; therefore they oppose it.

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 23- March 9, 2010



SENATOR BUNDE remarked that they already go through the hoops
that SB 129 woul d make them go through, and yet he is opposed to
it.

MR. BRAUTIGAN replied that the hearing process is already
addressed at a |l ocal |evel.

SENATOR BUNDE retorted that they already go through these
processes, but they want the option to not go through the
process if they choose to.

MR. BRAUTIGAN replied certainly nothing less than what is in
state statute. If this is a process that should be done, nmaybe
it should be done for every public notice they have had. He
noted that they have had many nulti-mllion dollar projects
t hroughout the borough recently, and their process was
transparent and had sufficiently engaged the public.

3:16: 09 PM
JEREMY DI LLARD, representing hinself, said he lived in the MatSu
Val | ey and supported SB 129.

3:16: 36 PM

DAVE DI LLARD, Al aska State Building Association, asked why the
fire departnment is against having nore public testinony. He said
sonmetimes the public doesn't know what is going on; requiring
sprinklers is a new thing that will be thrown on to the builders
and the cost has to be recognized. He said builders in Alaska
build better than nost everybody else in the United States. He
has a budget when he builds a house and this would be a line
itemin it. He said nmaybe people can only afford $250,000 and
woul dn't be able to buy anything with the additional cost of a
sprinkler system The Building Association wants to have nore
time to teach their clients about what they are getting.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked how this would affect what is currently in
place in Interior Al aska.

MR. DI LLARD answered that M. Tilly represents the Honebuil ders
through the comm ssion at the city now Since Al aska is usually
a few years behind on issues, this probably won't becone an
issue until maybe 2011. The difference with the other codes is
that Al askan builders already build beyond them so people don't
need to be concer ned.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 24- March 9, 2010



CHAI R PASKVAN remarked that the issue for the conmittee nenbers
is what the local nunicipal control is. The CS is a procedura
requi renent.

MR. DI LLARD said he thought the public needed nore time to
becone educated about this issue. Wrd has to get out.

3:22:20 PM
JEFF TWAIT, Director, Alaska State Honebuilding Association,
City of Kenai, said he supported SB 129. He said for sone reason
or another, sone people don't get a chance to voice their
opinions with only three neetings. Transparency is really
i mportant.

3:24:20 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN asked how this process would nodify the current
process, if at all.

MR TWAIT said he wasn't sure what the current process is and
didn't know if any public testinony was taken from building
officials on the current code. But this bill would at |east
all ow public testinony to be heard.

3:25:10 PM
CHAIR PASKVAN, finding no further coments, closed public
testimony on CSSB 129().

3:25:50 PM

SENATOR MEYER said the previous bill had to do with nobile hones
and knew that in Anchorage a large percent of fires were in
mobil e hones. If nobile hones are going to be treated the sane
as residential hones and new ones were getting built, he said he
assunmed they would have to neet the sane requirenments with the
sprinkl er systens.

3:27:43 PM

CHAI R PASKVAN said given the fact that people wanted to present
nore information to them he would hold SB 129 and adj ourned the
meeting at 3:27 p.m

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 25- March 9, 2010



